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mechanical, or other technological
collection techniques or other forms of
information technology, e.g., permitting
electronic submission of response.

As required in 5 CFR 13208.8(d),
ONRR published a 60-day notice, for
review and comment, in the Federal
Register on January 26, 2023 (88 FR
5038). ONRR did not receive any
comments in response to the Federal
Register notice available at
www.regulations.gov.

ONRR reached out to members of
industry soliciting comments for our
information collection request renewal
and received four comments. Three
members of industry provided
comments agreeing with the content of
this information collection, while one
member of industry suggested moving to
reporting on a quarterly, semi-annual, or
annual basis. ONRR provided responses
to each commenter accordingly.

Comments that you submit in
response to this notice are a matter of
public record. ONRR will include or
summarize each comment in its request
to OMB to approve this ICR. Before
including your address, phone number,
email address, or other personal
identifying information in your
comment, you should be aware that
your entire comment—including your
personal identifying information—may
be made publicly available at any time.
While you can ask ONRR in your
comment to withhold your personal
identifying information from public
review, ONRR cannot guarantee that it
will be able to do so.

Abstract: (a) General Information:
ONRR collects information necessary to
receive and verify net profit share
payments due the United States
pursuant to Outer Continental Shelf oil
and gas leases. The requirement to
accurately and timely maintain and
provide this information is mandatory.

(b) Information Collections: Title 30
CFR part 1220 requires a lessee of a net
profit share lease to maintain and
provide the following categories of
information:

(1) Capital Accounts and Reports:
Sections 1220.010 and 1220.021 require
the lessee to establish and maintain a
capital account for the lease. Section
1220.031(a) requires the lessee to file
annual reports with ONRR until
production revenues are credited to the
capital account. Section 1220.031(b)
requires the lessee to file monthly
reports with ONRR once production
revenues are credited to the capital
account. Section 1220.031(e) requires
the lessee to file a final report with
ONRR upon cessation of production.

(2) Inventories: Section 1220.032(a)
and (b) require the lessee to take

inventories at reasonable intervals not to
exceed three years. Section 1220.032(b)
requires the lessee to notify BOEM of its
intent to take inventory. Section
1220.032(d) requires the lessee to
reconcile the physical inventory with
the capital account and to make a list of
overages and shortages available to the
BOEM Director for audit. Section
1220.031(d) requires the lessee to file an
inventory report following the inventory
taking.

(3) Records and Audits: Section
1220.030(a) requires the lessee to
establish and maintain certain records
related to the lease. Section 1220.033(e)
authorizes ONRR to inspect the records.
Section 1220.033(a) authorizes ONRR to
audit accounts of the lessee or its
contractor related to lease operations.
Section 1220.033(b)(1) requires
nonoperators of the lease to notify
ONRR of an audit call.

Title of Collection: 30 CFR part 1220,
OCS Net Profit Share Payment
Reporting.

OMB Control Number: 1012—0009.

Form Numbers: None.

Type of Review: Extension of a
currently approved collection.

Respondents/Affected Public:
Businesses.

Total Estimated Number of Annual
Respondents: 9 lessees.

All nine lessees report monthly
because all current net profit share
leases are in producing status. ONRR
estimates that these lessees will file a
total of 180 monthly reports annually.
ONRR excluded estimates of certain
requirements performed in the normal
course of business that are considered
usual and customary.

Total Estimated Number of Annual
Responses: 180.

Total Estimated Number of Annual
Burden Hours: 1,584 hours.

Estimated Completion Time per
Response: 9 hours.

Respondent’s Obligation: Mandatory.

Frequency of Collection: Monthly,
annually, and on occasion.

Estimated Annual Non-hour Cost
Burden: ONRR has identified no “non-
hour” cost burden associated with the
collection of information.

An agency may not conduct, or
sponsor and a person is not required to
respond to a collection of information
unless it displays a currently valid OMB
control number.

The authority for this action is the
PRA (44 U.S.C. 3501, et seq.).

Howard Cantor,

Director, Office of Natural Resources
Revenue.

[FR Doc. 2023-20931 Filed 9-25-23; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4335-30-P

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

Bureau of Reclamation

[RR04093000, XXXR4081G3,
RX.05940913.FY19310]

Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive
Management Work Group Charter
Renewal

AGENCY: Bureau of Reclamation,
Interior.

ACTION: Notice of charter renewal.

SUMMARY: Following consultation with
the General Services Administration,
notice is hereby given that the Secretary
of the Interior (Secretary) is renewing
the charter for the Glen Canyon Dam
Adaptive Management Work Group. The
purpose of the Adaptive Management
Work Group is to provide advice and
recommendations to the Secretary
concerning the operation of Glen
Canyon Dam and the exercise of other
authorities pursuant to applicable
Federal law.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
William Stewart, Adaptive Management
Group Chief, (385) 622-2179, wstewart@
usbr.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: This
notice is published in accordance with
Section 9(a)(2) of the Federal Advisory
Committee Act of 1972 (Public Law 92—
463, as amended). The certification of
renewal is published below.

Certification

I hereby certify that Charter renewal
of the Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive
Management Work Group is in the
public interest in connection with the
performance of duties imposed on the
Department of the Interior.

Authority: 5 U.S.C. ch. 10.

Deb Haaland,
Secretary of the Interior.

[FR Doc. 2023—-20900 Filed 9-25-23; 8:45 am|
BILLING CODE 4332-90-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE
COMMISSION

[Investigation. No. 337-TA-1372]

Certain Vaporizer Devices, Cartridges
Used Therewith, and Components
Thereof; Institution of Investigation

AGENCY: International Trade
Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a
complaint was filed with the U.S.
International Trade Commission on
August 22, 2023, under section 337 of
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the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, on
behalf of NJOY, LLC of Scottsdale,
Arizona. The complaint alleges
violations of section 337 based upon the
importation into the United States, the
sale for importation, and the sale within
the United States after importation of
certain vaporizer devices, cartridges
used therewith, and components thereof
by reason of the infringement of certain
claims of U.S. Patent No. 11,497,864
(“the ’864 patent”) and U.S. Patent No.
10,334,881 (“‘the ’881 patent”). The
complaint further alleges that an
industry in the United States exists or
is in the process of being established as
required by the applicable Federal
Statute. The complainant requests that
the Commission institute an
investigation and, after the
investigation, issue a limited exclusion
order and a cease and desist order.
ADDRESSES: The complaint, except for
any confidential information contained
therein, may be viewed on the
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS)
at https://edis.usitc.gov. For help
accessing EDIS, please email
EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. Hearing impaired
individuals are advised that information
on this matter can be obtained by
contacting the Commission’s TDD
terminal on (202) 205-1810. Persons
with mobility impairments who will
need special assistance in gaining access
to the Commission should contact the
Office of the Secretary at (202) 205—
2000. General information concerning
the Commission may also be obtained
by accessing its internet server at
https://www.usitc.gov.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Pathenia M. Proctor, The Office of
Unfair Import Investigations, U.S.
International Trade Commission,
telephone (202) 205-2560.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Authority: The authority for
institution of this investigation is
contained in section 337 of the Tariff
Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C.
1337, and in section 210.10 of the
Commission’s Rules of Practice and
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10 (2023).

Scope of Investigation: Having
considered the complaint, the U.S.
International Trade Commission, on
September 21, 2023, ordered that—

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as
amended, an investigation be instituted
to determine whether there is a
violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of
section 337 in the importation into the
United States, the sale for importation,
or the sale within the United States after
importation of certain products
identified in paragraph (2) by reason of

infringement of one or more of claims
1-48 of the ’864 patent and claims 1, 3,
4,6-9, 11, 12, 14-17, 19, 20, 22, 23, and
25-27 of the ’881 patent, and whether
an industry in the United States exists
or is in the process of being established
as required by subsection (a)(2) of
section 337;

(2) Pursuant to section 210.10(b)(1) of
the Commission’s Rules of Practice and
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10(b)(1), the
plain language description of the
accused products or category of accused
products, which defines the scope of the
investigation, is “‘electronic nicotine
delivery systems (“ENDS”), cartridges
or pods used therewith, and
components thereof (cartridge housings,
atomizers, subassemblies, devices
subassemblies, chargers)”’;

(3) Pursuant to Commission Rule
210.50(b)(1), 19 CFR 210.50(b)(1), the
presiding administrative law judge shall
take evidence or other information and
hear arguments from the parties or other
interested persons with respect to the
public interest in this investigation, as
appropriate, and provide the
Commission with findings of fact and a
recommended determination on this
issue, which shall be limited to the
statutory public interest factors set forth
in 19 U.S.C. 1337(d)(1), (f)(1), (g)(1);

(4) For the purpose of the
investigation so instituted, the following
are hereby named as parties upon which
this notice of investigation shall be
served:

(a) The complainant is: NJOY, LLC,
9977 N. 90th Street, Suite 160,
Scottsdale, Arizona 85258.

(b) The respondent is the following
entity alleged to be in violation of
section 337, and is the party upon
which the complaint is to be served:
JUUL Labs, Inc., 1000 F Street NW,
Washington, DC 20004.

(c) The Office of Unfair Import
Investigations, U.S. International Trade
Commission, 500 E Street SW, Suite
401, Washington, DC 20436; and

(5) For the investigation so instituted,
the Chief Administrative Law Judge,
U.S. International Trade Commission,
shall designate the presiding
Administrative Law Judge.

Responses to the complaint and the
notice of investigation must be
submitted by the named respondent in
accordance with section 210.13 of the
Commission’s Rules of Practice and
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to
19 CFR 201.16(e) and 210.13(a), as
amended in 85 FR 15798 (March 19,
2020), such responses will be
considered by the Commission if
received not later than 20 days after the
date of service by the complainant of the
complaint and the notice of

investigation. Extensions of time for
submitting responses to the complaint
and the notice of investigation will not
be granted unless good cause therefor is
shown.

Failure of the respondent to file a
timely response to each allegation in the
complaint and in this notice may be
deemed to constitute a waiver of the
right to appear and contest the
allegations of the complaint and this
notice, and to authorize the
administrative law judge and the
Commission, without further notice to
the respondent, to find the facts to be as
alleged in the complaint and this notice
and to enter an initial determination
and a final determination containing
such findings, and may result in the
issuance of an exclusion order or a cease
and desist order or both directed against
the respondent.

By order of the Commission.

Issued: September 21, 2023.
Katherine Hiner,
Supervisory Attorney.
[FR Doc. 2023-20936 Filed 9-25-23; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE
COMMISSION

[USITC SE—23-046]
Sunshine Act Meetings

AGENCY HOLDING THE MEETING: United
States International Trade Commission.
TIME AND DATE: October 2, 2023 at 11:00
a.m.

PLACE: Room 101, 500 E Street SW,
Washington, DC 20436, Telephone:
(202) 205-2000.

STATUS: Open to the public.

MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED:

1. Agendas for future meetings: none.

2. Minutes.

3. Ratification List.

4. Commission vote on Inv. Nos. 701—
TA-382 and 731-TA-800, 801 and 803
(Fourth Review) (Stainless Steel Sheet
and Strip from Japan, South Korea, and
Taiwan). The Commission currently is
scheduled to complete and file its
determinations and views of the
Commission on October 16, 2023 .

5. Outstanding action jackets: none.
CONTACT PERSON FOR MORE INFORMATION:
Sharon Bellamy, Supervisory Hearings
and Information Officer, 202—-205—-2595.

The Commission is holding the
meeting under the Government in the
Sunshine Act, 5 U.S.C. 552(b). In
accordance with Commission policy,
subject matter listed above, not disposed
of at the scheduled meeting, may be
carried over to the agenda of the
following meeting.
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